Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC.
2735 Wardlow Road
Corona, CA 92882
https://www.saleen.com/

Up to $1,235,000.00 in Common Stock at $1.25
Minimum Target Amount: $15,000.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC.
Address: 2735 Wardlow Road, Corona, CA 92882
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: August 06, 2021

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $15,000.00 | 12,000 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,235,000.00 | 988,000 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $1.25

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $498.75

*"Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1935 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Commeon Stock.

Investment Incentives & Bonuses™

Time-Based Perks
Invest within the first 72 hours and receive 20% bonus shares

Invest within the first week and receive 15% bonus shares



Invest within the first two weeks and receive 10% bonus shares
Invest within the first three weeks and receive 5% bonus shares
Amount-Based Perks

Lap Record Perk — Invest $1,500+ and receive 5% bonus shares
Supercar Perk — Invest $5,000+ and receive 10% bonus shares

Winners Perk — Invest $25,000+ and receive 15% bonus shares and a $2,500 credit on
purchase of a new Saleen vehicle

Champions Perk — Invest $50,000+ and receive 20% bonus shares and a $5,000 credit
on purchase of a new Saleen vehicle

Grand Prix Perk®™ — Invest $100,000+ and receive 20% bonus shares and a trip for 2 to
Southern California, Saleen Mustang for the weekend, personal meeting + dinner with
Steve Saleen

Loyalty Bonus

10% bonus shares to our existing shareholders, pledge holders, and TTW reservation
holders.

*In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in
the same offering that meets the minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks
will not be granted if an investor submits multiple investments that, when combined,
meet the perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.

Crowdfunding investments made through a self-directed IRA cannot receive non-
bonus share perks due to tax laws. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) prohibits self-
dealing transactions in which the investor receives an immediate, personal financial
gain on investments owned by their retirement account. As a result, an investor must
refuse those non-bonus share perks because they would be receiving a benefit from
their IRA account.

** Includes coach class airfare from anywhere within the continental United States.

The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus

SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all
investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine
Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Common Stock at
$1.25 / share, you will receive 110 shares of Common Stock, meaning you'll own 110
shares for $125. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.



This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses
based on the amount invested and time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors
will also receive the Owner’s Bonus 5% Loyalty Bonus in addition to the
aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC. ("Saleen,” the “Company”, “We”, or “Our”) is an original
equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) of high-performance vehicles (“Saleen OEM”) that
are built from the ground up. The Company designs, develops, manufactures, and sells
high-performance vehicles built from the base chassis of major American automobile
manufacturers (“Saleen Signature Cars”). These Saleen-badged cars traditionally
include high horse-powered engines, transmissions, suspensions, interior trims, and
aerodynamics, to set them apart from their counterparts. All Saleen models are tested
and built at Saleen’s private facility in Corona, California. The Company also provides
engineering, development, and design consulting services on a project basis for
automotive manufacturers worldwide. The Company currently has customers
worldwide, including muscle and high-performance car enthusiasts, collectors,
automotive dealers, exotic car retail dealers, television and motion picture
productions, and consumers in the luxury supercar and motorsports markets.

We are an original equipment manufacturer ("OEM”) of high-performance vehicles
that we build from the ground up, called the Saleen Original Series. We also design,
develop, manufacture and sell high-performance vehicles built from base chassis of
major American automobile manufacturers, which we refer to as “Saleen Signature
Cars”. We currently have customers worldwide, including muscle and high-
performance car enthusiasts, collectors, automotive dealers, exotic car retail dealers,
television and motion picture productions, and consumers in the luxury supercar and
motorsports markets. We also provide engineering, development and design
consulting services on a project basis for automotive manufacturers worldwide.

Summary of entity here:

Saleen Automotive, Inc. (" Saleen,” “we,” “us,” “our,” or the “Company”) was formed
on August 6, 2021, under the laws of Delaware, and is headquartered at 2735 Wardlow
Road, Corona, CA 92882, Our predecessor, Saleen Automotive, Inc., was formed under
the laws of Nevada on June 24, 2011 (the “Predecessor”). On August 6, 2021, the
Company undertook a merger transaction to reorganize under Delaware law. As a
result of that merger, Saleen became a Delaware C corporation that wholly owns SLN
Merger Sub, LLC (“SLN Sub™), into which the Predecessor was merged, and is our
operating company. The Predecessor executed a merger that closed on June 26, 2013,
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and the Saleen Entities merged with the Company and approximately 93% of the
Company’s common stock was owned, collectively, by Saleen and the former holders
of the outstanding capital stock of Saleen Automotive. The transaction was accounted
for as a recapitalization with the Saleen Entities deemed the acquiring companies for
accounting purposes, and the Company deemed the legal acquirer. In June 2013, the
Company amended its articles of incorporation to change its name to Saleen
Automotive, Inc.

Our parent Company, Saleen Automotive, Inc. was founded in Corona, CA in 2021,
and wholly owns SLN Merger Sub LLC. SLN Merger Sub LLC wholly owns Saleen Sales
Corporation (CA Corp, founded in 2013) and Saleen Signature Cars (CA Corp, founded
in 2008).

Business model

We make our revenue by designing, developing, and manufacturing automobiles.
Currently, the majority of our revenue comes from the Saleen Signature Series, which
are high-performance automobiles based on the chassis of globally popular Ford
automobiles such as the Ford Mustang, Ford F-150, and Ford Bronco. Our newest
revenue stream will come from the production and sales of the Saleen Original Series,
which are Saleen automobiles that are designed, developed, and produced entirely in-
house by Saleen Automotive. The first model of the Saleen Original Series will be the
Saleen §1, a two seater sports car that will have the qualities, performance, and
features of high end luxury European sports cars, but at a more attractive price. The
51 is only the beginning of the Saleen Original Series, which over time will feature an
array of automobiles.

[P

We own all of our Intellectual Property, especially as it relates to the Saleen 57, one of
America’s most successful supercars. Additionally, millions have been spent
developing the S1, which is the next car that we are planning to launch as a part of the

Saleen Original Series,

In total, Steve Saleen has 25 patents to his name across multiple facets of automobile
design, developing, and manufacturing.

Competitors and Industry

Competitors

Saleen Automobiles live at the intersection of 1) American Muscle Cars made by
companies such as Ford, Chevrolet, Jeep, and Dodge, 2) Premium Luxury Cars made by
Cadillac, Lexus, Infiniti, Acura, and Genesis and 3) High-Performance Cars such as
Porsche, Ferrari, Lamborghini, McLaren, BMW, Audi, and Mercedes. We view all of
these manufacturers as our competitors, because we echo the history, bravado, and
price point of American Muscle Cars, the features and look of Premium Luxury Cars,
and the speed and performance of High-Performance Cars.



Industry

The luxury car market was estimated to be $617bn in 2022 and is expected to grow at
a compound annual growth rate of 6.9% from 2023 to 2030, reaching over $1 trillion
by 2030. We hope to capitalize on this growth by launching the Saleen Original Series,
first with the S1 and then introducing additional models in the coming years.

We believe it's an exciting time in the automobile industry, especially after some
downturns due to the COVID pandemic, and we are excited to be a part of this growth
and turnaround, especially in the US market.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Current Stage

We are currently in-market with our Saleen Signature Series vehicles, and in R&D,
prototyping, certification stages with new products.

We have a 40 year history in the automotive industry, starting out in competitive
racing and quickly moving to manufacturing high-performance automobiles. Our
oldest and most successful business line is a 40 year history with the Ford Motor
Company, where we design, develop, manufacture, and sell high-performance vehicles
based on the chassis of the Ford Mustang, Ford F-150, and Ford Bronco. This line of
business is called the Saleen Signature Series. We currently have plans to launch the
Saleen Original Series, which includes the Saleen 51, a two-seater sports car entirely
developed and designed by Saleen Automotive. We are fundraising to bring this car to
market and eventually launch other cars in the Saleen Original Series.

As we recover from the pandemic, including lack of supply from Ford and supply chain
constraints, we continue to see revenue growth year over year and are currently
experiencing more demand that we can currently meet. We are seeing a record
number of orders since the start of the pandemic and are optimistic about the growth

of our largest revenue stream, the Saleen Signature Series, along with the projected
revenue that we expect to see once the Saleen S1 hits the market.

Roadmap

An investor will be able to become a part of American and Worldwide Automotive
history when they purchase shares in Saleen Automotive. They’ll be investing in a
Company that is already generating revenue through its relationship with Ford Motor
Company, including a 40 vear history of racing and manufacturing. Additionally, an
investor will be able to get in on the beginning of the launch of the Saleen §1, a high
performance American-made supercar. We believe this is only the beginning of the
Saleen Original Series, which may prove to be a record changing entrant to the global
luxury car market.

Prior Litigation and Regulatory Actions



Between 2013 and 2019, we, certain of our subsidiaries and predecessors-in interest,
and Steve Saleen, our chief executive officer and director, were named as defendants
in various breach of contract and breach of warranty lawsuits, all of which have been
dismissed or settled. In addition, in 2023, a judgement in the amount of $3,808 was
entered against us in lowa Small Claims Court, which judgement we are in the process
of disputing. In October 2017, the Securities & Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
issued an order revoking the registration of the securities of Saleen Automotive, Inc., a
Nevada corporation (~Saleen Nevada™), our predecessor-in-interest and a prior
reporting company pursuant to the Securities & Exchange Act (the “Exchange Act™).
The order resulted from an administrative action by the SEC due to the failure of
Saleen Nevada to file periodic reports with the SEC during 2016 and 2017, in violation
of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 13a-1 and 13-al3, thereunder.

Saleen Sales Corporation, one of our subsidiaries, is subject to three tax liens from the
State of California, in the aggregate amount of $39,145, which we are, in good faith,
disputing and seeking to settle. Saleen Signature Cars, one of our subsidiaries, is
subject to a tax lien in the State of Wisconsin in the amount of $702, a tax lien in the
State of Michigan for $6,872, and 6 tax liens in the State of Alabama in the aggregate
amount of $4,712, all of which we are in the process of settling. The failure to settle
such liens or any future liens could result in a foreclosure on our assets, impact our
ability to obtain third party financing or otherwise have an adverse effect on our
business.

Prior Litigation Contd.

The managing member and majority owner, Leslie Edelman, of one of the Company's
Principal Securities Holders was involved in three previous civil suits, whereby Leslie
was a named defendant.

Leslie was named as a defendant in a civil suit filed on April 8, 2003, by Radlo
Kazimierz in the New Jersey Superior Court. Subsequently, Leslie was named as a
defendant in a civil suit filed on March 21, 2013, by Radlo Et Al in the United States
District Court, New Jersey. The cases are for personal injury stemming from the
delivery of materials to Leslie's home.

Leslie was also named a defendant in a civil suit (Product Liability) in the United
States District Court of the Middle District of Florida. The status of this case is
"closed.”

Please see the risk factor section of the Company's onboarding materials for the risks
associated.

The Team
Officers and Directors

Name: Steve Saleen



Steve Saleen’s current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: CEO
Dates of Service: July, 2011 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee and manage all aspects of Saleen Automotive,
including design, development, marketing, manufacturing, sales, and
distribution.

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: July, 2011 - Present
Responsibilities: Serve as a member of the board of directors

Name: Charles Arzubiaga
Charles Arzubiaga's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Vice President, Controller
Dates of Service: April, 2023 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee all finance and accounting functions at Saleen
Automotive

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Maya Cinemas North America, Inc.
Title: Vice President of Accounting and Finance
Dates of Service: January, 2020 - March, 2023
Responsibilities: Oversee accounting and finance

Name: Greg Stacy
Greg Stacy's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Vice President of Marketing
Dates of Service: January, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee marketing and social media for Saleen Automotive

Name: Werner Gruber

Werner Gruber's current primary role is with the Issuer.



Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Vice President of Design
Dates of Service: December, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee all aspects of automotive design for Saleen

Name: Paul Moore
Paul Moore's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Vice President of Operations
Dates of Service: July, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee all aspects of manufacturing and operations for Saleen

Name: Frederic Blum
Frederic Blum's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Vice President of Retail and Sales
Dates of Service: January, 1985 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee all retail and sales operations for Saleen Automotive

Name: Dennis Hartmann

Dennis Hartmann's current primary role is with The Hartmann Law Group. Dennis
Hartmann currently services Approximately 1 hour per week hours per week in their
role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

® Position: Director
Dates of Service: July, 2021 - Present

Responsibilities: Serve as a member of the company's Board of Directors

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: The Hartmann Law Group
Title: Founding Member
Dates of Service: January, 1990 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee all aspects of the business



Name: Neil Hannemann

Neil Hannemann's current primary role is with Automotive Consultant. Neil
Hannemann currently services Approximately 1 hour per week hours per week in their
role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: July, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Serve as a member of the Company's board of directors

Name: Michael Deschenes

Michael Deschenes's current primary role is with Retired. Michael Deschenes currently
services Approximately 1 hour per week hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: July, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Serve as a member of the Company's board of directors

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, "us”, “our”, or “Company™)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Common
Stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to
enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the
Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential investor
regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the other
information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.



Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the product or service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and
still attract business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC
limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot be
resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the
stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the
benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the automotive industry. However, that may never happen or it
may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates may be favorable, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. [ssuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.



Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to
be more favorable than the terms of vour investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyvond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational
products

It is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may
never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the
product is the result of a change in business model upon the Company’s making a
determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best
interest of the Company and its stockholders.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties
We are currently in the research and development stage and have only manufactured a
prototype for our Saleen Original Series. Delays or cost overruns in the development
of our Saleen Original Series and failure of the product to meet our performance
estimates may be caused by, among other things, unanticipated technological hurdles,
difficulties in manufacturing, changes to design and regulatory hurdles. Any of these
events could materially and adversely affect our operating performance and results of
operations.



Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Common Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them.
However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and have
agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEO™), or his or
her successor, as your voting proxy. You are trusting in management discretion in
making good business decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the
event of a liqguidation of our Company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash
remaining after all of the creditors of our Company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow vour investment.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yvet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
owns over 25 trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names, and trade secrets. We
believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual
property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the
rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its
intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that
unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the
Company.



The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights,
we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a
multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of
enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in
light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not
to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent
competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in
the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of vour
investment,

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including some of our retail and distribution. It is possible that some of these third
parties will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable
manner. It is possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems
with their work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no
recourse to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other
suppliers’ operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result,
your investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

Intense Competition

Saleen Automotive operates in a highly competitive market, facing competition from
established manufacturers of American Muscle Cars, Premium Luxury Cars, and High-
Performance Cars. Competitors include well-known brands such as Ford, Chevrolet,
Jeep, Cadillac, Lexus, Porsche, Ferrari, Lamborghini, BMW, Audi, and Mercedes. The
company will need to continuously differentiate itself, innovate, and maintain a



strong brand presence to remain competitive and capture market share.

Economic Volatility

The luxury car market, although projected to experience substantial growth, is
susceptible to economic downturns and fluctuations. During periods of economic
instability, consumers may reduce discretionary spending on high-end luxury items,
including luxury cars. A decline in consumer purchasing power or a recessionary
environment could negatively impact the demand for Saleen's high-performance
vehicles and lead to a decline in sales and revenue.

Supply Chain Disruptions

Saleen Automotive relies on a complex supply chain to source components, parts, and
materials required for manufacturing its vehicles. Disruptions in the supply chain,
such as delays in the delivery of essential components, shortages of raw materials, or
geopolitical factors affecting suppliers, could lead to production delays, increased
costs, and customer dissatisfaction. The company should have contingency plans in
place to mitigate potential disruptions and ensure a reliable supply chain.

Technological Advancements

The automotive industry is witnessing rapid technological advancements, including
the rise of electric vehicles, autonomous driving technologies, and enhanced
connectivity features. Failure to adapt and integrate these emerging technologies into
its vehicles could result in a loss of competitiveness for Saleen Automotive. The
company needs to invest in research and development to stay ahead of technological
trends and meet evolving customer expectations.

Regulatory Compliance

The automotive industry is subject to various local, national, and international
regulations related to safety, emissions, fuel efficiency, and other environmental
standards. Non-compliance with these regulations can lead to fines, penalties,
reputational damage, and disruptions in production. Saleen Automotive must stay
updated on regulatory requirements and ensure that its vehicles meet all necessary
standards to avoid legal and compliance issues.

Intellectual Property Risks

While Saleen Automotive possesses a significant amount of intellectual property (IP),
including patents and proprietary designs, there is a risk of infringement by
competitors or other entities. Protecting and enforcing its IP rights is crucial for the
company's success. Legal challenges, disputes, or inadequate IP protection could
undermine Saleen's ability to differentiate itself and maintain a competitive
advantage.

Changing Consumer Preferences

Consumer preferences and trends in the automotive industry can change rapidly.
Shifts in consumer preferences towards electric vehicles, sustainability, and
alternative mobility solutions may impact the demand for high-performance gasoline-
powered vehicles offered by Saleen Automotive. The company needs to anticipate and
adapt to changing consumer preferences to ensure its product offerings remain



attractive and aligned with market demands.

Economic and Geopolitical Factors

Saleen Automotive's operations and sales are not limited to a single market. Changes
in economic conditions, trade policies, tariffs, or political instability in key markets
can significantly impact the company's business. Fluctuating exchange rates,
import/export regulations, and geopolitical tensions can affect production costs,
pricing, profitability, and market access for Saleen's vehicles.

Brand Reputation

Maintaining a strong brand reputation is crucial in the automotive industry. Negative
publicity, product recalls, quality issues, or safety concerns can tarnish a brand's
image and erode consumer trust. Saleen Automotive needs to prioritize quality
control, customer satisfaction, and ensure consistent delivery of high-performance
vehicles to protect its brand reputation and retain customer loyalty.

Market Saturation

The luxury car market is becoming increasingly saturated with numerous
manufacturers vying for market share. As more competitors enter the market, it may
become more challenging

We Have Been Involved in Multiple Lawsuits and A Regulatory Actions.

Between 2013 and 2019, we, certain of our subsidiaries and predecessors-in interest,
and Steve Saleen, our chief executive officer and director, were named as defendants
in various breach of contract and breach of warranty lawsuits, all of which have been
dismissed or settled. In addition, in 2023, a judgement in the amount of $3,808 was
entered against us in lowa Small Claims Court, which judgement we are in the process
of disputing. In October 2017, the Securities & Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
issued an order revoking the registration of the securities of Saleen Automotive, Inc., a
Nevada corporation (“Saleen Nevada™), our predecessor-in-interest and a prior
reporting company pursuant to the Securities & Exchange Act (the “Exchange Act™).
The order resulted from an administrative action by the SEC due to the failure of
Saleen Nevada to file periodic reports with the SEC during 2016 and 2017, in violation
of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 13a-1 and 13-al3, thereunder. We may
be named in lawsuits or regulatory actions in the future. Regardless of whether any
future claims or actions have merit, defending such lawsuits and regulatory actions
may be time-consuming and costly, and could harm our reputation, adversely affect
our relationship with customers and partners, divert management’s attention and
resources, and result substantial costs and/or subject us to significant liability.

Certain of Our Subsidiaries Are Subject To Tax Liens

Saleen Sales Corporation, one of our subsidiaries, is subject to three tax liens from the
State of California, in the aggregate amount of $39,145, which we are, in good faith,
disputing and seeking to settle. Saleen Signature Cars, one of our subsidiaries, is
subject to a tax lien in the State of Wisconsin in the amount of $702, a tax lien in the
State of Michigan for $6,872, and 6 tax liens in the State of Alabama in the aggregate
amount of $4,712, all of which we are in the process of settling. The failure to settle



such liens or any future liens could result in a foreclosure on our assets, impact our
ability to obtain third party financing or otherwise have an adverse effect on our

business.

The managing member and majority owner of Edvest Saleen LLC, one of the
Company's Principal Securities Holders, was named as a defendant in three civil
lawsuits.

Leslie Edelman, the managing member and majority owner of Edvest Saleen LLC, was
named as a defendant in three civil suits, all of which have been closed. There are two
claims of personal injury stemming from the delivery of materials and one claim of
product liability. The involvement of Leslie Edelman in the civil suits may subject
either Edvest Saleen LLC or the Company to increased scrutiny and regulatory
compliance requirements. The Company may be required to disclose information,
provide additional documentation, or comply with specific reporting obligations,
which could result in additional costs and administrative burdens.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Type of Security
Stockholder N P t
ockholder Name Securities od od ercentage
EDVEST SALEEN, LLC 3,997,746 Common Stock [16.3%
SALEEN STEVE M 3,967,734 Common Stock |[16.2%
AKASA HOLDI 1

GAKASA HOLDINGS (100% owned|) o o) Common Stock [11.9%
by Fred Knoll)

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Preferred Stock, and Convertible Note.
As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to
988,000 of Common Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 100,000,000 with a total of 27,581,795
outstanding.

Voting Rights
1 vote per share. Please see Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering.
Material Rights

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEQ™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public




offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock.

The total amount outstanding includes 2,222,222 shares to be issued pursuant to
outstanding warrants.

Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 1,000,000 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights
There are no voting rights associated with Preferred Stock.
Material Rights
There are no material rights associated with Preferred Stock.
Convertible Note

The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the Convertible Note
are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $100,000.00
Maturity Date: March 28, 2017
Interest Rate: 7.0%

Discount Rate: 30.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: N/A

Material Rights

The Convertible Note currently will convert at the lesser of $0.07 or 70% of the
average of the Company's stock price over a specified period of time if it were publicly
traded.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Common Stock of this offering, you have granted your votes
by proxy to the CEO of the Company. Even if you were to receive control of your
voting rights, as a minority holder, you will have limited rights in regards to the
corporate actions of the Company, including additional issuances of securities,
company repurchases of securities, a sale of the Company or its significant assets, or
company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the Company.

Dilution



Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the company decides to issue more
shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less
than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being
less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends,
and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest
any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
® [nan IPO;
e To the company;
e To an accredited investor; and

¢ To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $155,950.00
Number of Securities Sold: 155,950
Use of proceeds: General business operations
Date: April 01, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation A+

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $100,000.00
Use of proceeds: General business operations
Date: March 28, 2014



Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
Revenues, Cost of Goods Sold, and Gross Margins

Revenues for the Company in fiscal vear 2021, which ended on March 31, 2021, was
$2,480,603, compared with revenues for the fiscal year 2022, which ended on March
31, 2022, which was $3,329,975. This represents a 34% increase over the prior year,
which is primarily due to the Company's ability to get inventory from the Ford Motor
Company in order to fulfill orders for the Saleen versions of the Ford Mustang and
Ford F150. The Company was significantly impacted by supply chain and inventory
availability during the COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in a decrease in sales and
revenue.

Costs of goods sold for the Company in fiscal yvear 2021 were $2,708,024, compared to
$3,657,529 for fiscal year 2022, which is a 35% increase from the prior year. Gross
margin in fiscal yvear 2021 was -9% compared to -10% in fiscal vear 2022, which is
roughly the same and represents almost no change year over year. The Company's
negative gross margin was mostly related to it selling certain automobiles at a loss in
order to generate cash flow and sustain operations during the COVID-19 pandemic,
when it was struggling with inventory and supply chain from its suppliers.

Expenses

Operating expenses for fiscal year 2021 were $4,410,356, as compared to $4,272,260 in
fiscal year 2021, a 3% decrease. Selling, general, and administrative expenses saw an
8% decrease between 2022 and 2021, when it went from $4,289,142 to $3,963,692. This
decrease was related to the Company focusing on increasing efficiencies and
decreasing burn over the pandemic. Conversely, research and development related
expenses increased by 155% from 2021 to 2022, mostly due to increased activity



related to product development from the Saleen Original Series and specifically the
S1.

Other Income/Expense

The Company actually recognized a net income of $4,748,693 in fiscal year 2022 as
compared to a loss of $3,332,907 in fiscal year 2021. While the Company did see a
small improvement in loss from operations between 2021 and 2022, the main reason
there was such an increase in net income from the prior year was related to one-time
gains of $9,619,461, from the Company recovering assets related to the Saleen
Original Series. This represented a significant increase in the Company's assets, which
also totaled $9,619,461.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company has a long operating history, having been in business for 40 years. Due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company experienced significant delays and
availabilty of both inventory and supply chain, and as a result, saw a decrease in
revenue and cash flow. For example, revenues in fiscal year 2020, which ended on
March 31, 2020, were $28,041,000, compared to revenues of $2,480,603 in fiscal year
2021 and $3,329,975 in fiscal year 2022. The Company expects increased revenue in
fiscal yvear 2023 and bevond as its supply chain opens up and it has access to more
inventory as a part of its relationship with the Ford Motor Company. Additionally, as
the Company relaunched the Saleen Original Series and brings the S1 car to mass
production, it expects growing revenue in fiscal year 2024 and beyond from this
business line. In order for the Company to see increased revenue, it must also have
enough resources to support increased supply from the Ford Motor Company. These
resources include hourly and full-time staff and working capital that is able to
purchase the parts required when it enhances the Ford automobiles. In order for it to
be able to support and produce sales of the S1 car as it scales to mass production, the
Company will be required to have enough full-time and part-time staff, inventory
availability, and working capital required to fully produce automobiles entirely in
house.

From a cash flow perspective, the Company continued to burn cash in fiscal year 2021
and fiscal vear 2022 as it saw lower revenues and higher expenses. In fiscal year 2023 it
began efforts to decrease fixed expenses and lower burn in order to increase cash flow
as it gears up for a growth in revenue as compared to the prior few years. Additionally,
it conducted a Regulation A+ financing round in fiscal year 2023, and it expects
additional capital into the business from this fundraise and future planned fundraises
in fiscal year 2024,

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of May 31, 2023, the Company had $89,355 cash on hand available to it. While the



Company has some outstanding debt, it does not currently have any additional lines
of credit available to it. However, the Company currently has revenue from the Saleen
Signature Series, which does generate cash flow and sustains normal business
operations.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are not critical the Company's core operations
as the core operation of Saleen Automotive are related to its relationship with the
Ford Motor Company and selling cars as a part of the Saleen Signature Series.
However, the Company does believe the the funds from this campaign are critical to
the success of the Saleen Original Series, which is a line of high-performance
automobiles that are fully designed, devleoped, and manufactured in house by Saleen
Automotive.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are not necessary to the viability of the
Company. Of the total funds that our Company has, approximately 50% will be made
up of funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding
goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for over 2 years. This is because the Company already has revenue
from the Saleen Signature Series, which generates enough cash to sustain operations,
especially as the Company has taken steps in fiscal year 2025 to reduce burn and
operating expenses. The Company has already operated over 3 years at this level
during the COVID-19 pandemic when it was experiencing lower sales yet it was still
able to maintain operations. This rate represents a monthly burn rate of
approximately $75,000 per month, most of which is made up of payroll, rent, and
operating expenses.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for over 2 years. This is because the Company already has revenue



from the Saleen Signature Series, which generates enough cash to sustain operations,
especially as the Company has taken steps in fiscal year 2023 to reduce burn and
operating expenses. As the Company continues to raise capital, including the
maximum from this offering, it will be able to increase monthly burn to approximately
$100,000 per month, which will eventually result in higher sales from Saleen
Signature Series, which it expects to start realizing in 2024-2025.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Currently, the Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital
including, a second Regulation A+ financing round. The purpose of this fundraise and
future ones will be to raise enough capital to relaunch the Saleen Original Series and
bring automobiles from that product to mass production, starting with the S1.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: US Small Business Administration

Amount Owed: $500,000.00
Interest Rate: 3.75%
Maturity Date: August 18, 2050

o Creditor: Rexco
Amount Owed: $58,753.00
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Note is due on demand

¢ Creditor: W-net Fund I, LP
Amount Owed: $350,000.00
Interest Rate: 12.0%
Maturity Date: July 20, 2023

e Creditor: Philpott Family Trust

Amount Owed: $100,000.00
Interest Rate: 7.0%
Convertible note, currently past due.

o Creditor: Certitude Trust
Amount Owed: $150,000.00
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: July 01, 2022
Currently past due.



¢ Creditor: Steve Saleen
Amount Owed: $190,698.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%
The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and due on demand.

e Creditor: S7 Supercars, LLC
Amount Owed: $1,482,304.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%
On May 31, 2019, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement with
S7 Supercars, LLC ("S7 Supercars™) ("S7 Purchase Agreement™), a related party
controlled by affiliates of two of the Company’s principal stockholders, pursuant
to which S7 Supercars sold all of its assets, chassis and other automotive parts
relating to the manufacture of the Saleen S7 supercar (“S7™), and related
intellectual property, to the Company for an aggregate purchase price of
$1,482,304 comprised of a cash consideration of $800,000 and the elimination of
an $682,304 accounts receivable from S§7 Supercars. The Company accounted for
this purchase as an asset acquisition, and accordingly, the consideration given
for the assets was allocated to a trade name in intangible assets. Prior to the
execution of the S7 Purchase Agreement, the Company manufactured the §7
under the agreement with §7 Supercars. S7 Purchase Agreement contains a
provision that the Company pay S7 Supercars up to four payments of $50,000
each for a sale of S7 through May 31, 2021, subject to the certain conditions
included in the S7 Purchase Agreement. During this two-year period, the
Company did not sell any S7, and therefore, did not make any payments to the
sellers of S7 Supercars.

Related Party Transactions

e Name of Entity: Steve Saleen
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: During the vear ended March 31,
2022 and 2021, the Company received advances from the Chief Executive Officer
totaling $137,900 and $52,798, respectively, all of which was outstanding as of
March 31, 2022. There's also accrued payroll of $634,993 due to Steve at March,
312022,
Material Terms: The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and due on
demand.

e Name of Entity: S7 Supercars, LLC
Names of 20% owners: Dave Weiner/W-Net Fund
Relationship to Company: Stockholders
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Asset Acquisition
Material Terms: On May 31, 2019, the Company entered into an asset purchase
agreement with S7 Supercars, LLC ("S7 Supercars”) (" S7 Purchase Agreement”),
a related party controlled by affiliates of two of the Company’s principal



stockholders, pursuant to which S7 Supercars sold all of its assets, chassis and
other automotive parts relating to the manufacture of the Saleen S7 supercar
(“S§77), and related intellectual property, to the Company for an aggregate
purchase price of $1,482,304 comprised of a cash consideration of $800,000 and
the elimination of an $682,304 accounts receivable from S7 Supercars. The
Company accounted for this purchase as an asset acquisition, and accordingly,
the consideration given for the assets was allocated to a trade name in intangible
assets. Prior to the execution of the §7 Purchase Agreement, the Company
manufactured the §7 under the agreement with §7 Supercars. S7 Purchase
Agreement contains a provision that the Company pay S7 Supercars up to four
payments of $50,000 each for a sale of §7 through May 31, 2021, subject to the
certain conditions included in the 57 Purchase Agreement. During this two-year
period, the Company did not sell any S7, and therefore, did not make any
payments to the sellers of S7 Supercars.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $34,477,243.75
Valuation Details:

SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC. ("Saleen” or the "Company") determined its pre-money
valuation based on an analysis of the following factors:

In FY2022, the Company had an operating revenue of $3,329,975 and it is forecasting
increased revenue over the next few years as it recovers from supply chain constraints
related to the COVID-19 pandemic. Given the forward-looking revenue potential,
especially with the Saleen Original Series, a 10x valuation multiple is competitive with
the rest of the market. Companies like Rivian and Lucid have revenue multiples
between 10-20x. With this information and using a revenue multiplier of 10.05x and
prior year revenue of $3,529,975, we can justify a pre-money valuation of
$33,448.981.25.

Additionally, the Company recently re-acquired over $9mm in assets on its balance
sheet from the S1 project. This alone has extremely high revenue-earning potential as
it seeks to start production on the 51, the first model in the Saleen Original Series.
These acquired assets which now sit on the balance sheet provide further justification
to the 10.05x revenue multiplier the Company used when calculating the pre-money
valuation for this financing round.

Management has 40 years of experience in the automotive industry, including a deep
relationship with the Ford Motor Company, which it has worked with to manufacture
over 30,000 cars. Our CEQ is a pioneer in the industry, and in addition to his
experience in designing and manufacturing cars for commercial consumption, he has
had extensive success in designing and manufacturing high-performance cars for the
race track, including the S7 (Saleen 7), which has over 300 wins to its name. This
experience from the management team and the success of Saleen's automobiles



provides further justification to the 10.05x revenue multiplier the Company used
when calculating the pre-money valuation for this financing round.

The Company set its valuation internally, without a formal third-party independent
evaluation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. fn making this
calculation, we have assumed:

(1) the Company has zero (0) Preferred Stock outstanding; and

(ii) all outstanding warrants with a right to acquire shares are exercised.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $15,000.00 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e StartEngine Premium Fees
94.5%
StartEngine Premium Fees

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,235,000.00, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e Research & Development
25.0%
Accelerate final research and development and certification of the Saleen 51 for

production.

e Marketing
25.0%
Market the Company and the Saleen 51 to the general public.

o Working Capital
25.0%
General business operations, including overhead, office expenses, etc.

e Company Employment
19.5%
Support ongoing business operations via payroll and contractor pay.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.



Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than July 29 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://www.saleen.com/ (www.saleen.com).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/saleen
Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.



EXHIBIT B TO FORM C

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW FOR SALEEN
AUTOMOTIVE, INC.

[See attached]
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Independent Auditors™ Report

artesian I
EPa, LLE——

T the Board of Directors of
Galeen Autcinotive, Ine,
Crrana, California

INDEPENDEMT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

We have revdieaed the nr.v;nmpqn}"ing consnlidated fmancial starements of Salesn .-".1:|rr:|n'|-:1l:i1,r|_-.I Tne. and suhsidiaries
ithe “Company'’), which comprse the consolidared balance sheer as of March 31, 2022, and the related consolidated
statements of up-c::.tium, stockholders" :qu.'rt'_?.-"{de-ﬁr.i:], and cash flonars For the yoar then i:m:]ed, and the related notes to
1]1E CI:d:IEIZII.‘iEI.‘IIEEI ﬁ:l:lil.‘"ll’.'iﬂ..l Statements. ."-. I"E".liE'-".' i:l:ll:.ILl.d.‘IEﬁ ‘I!Iil:l1il.|']|}' .HEJP\]:l-'jI:Lg H.I"L'Il.}'liu.l. [_'II.'\IC:II'_'EE.:ILI.TE.‘G (R I:I:I.i].l:lﬂgEl:l:l.El:l.l‘ﬁ
fimancial dats and making nguiries of company management. A eeview 5 substancally less in seope dan an aoedic dee
l::ll'bjEfti'-'E I::ll.'- \J."I'Iif.l'l i.': E-I'IE E:Erlfl'.ﬁ!i(:ll‘l I::Il.: o -::r:-inilm TEH‘HI’I"I-I'Ig rI'IE. "-II'ISII'H'.;'HI statements as a Wht!lﬂ. f‘LI.'.E.(H'-I'“I'Ing"I e ﬂl:il et
express such an opinion,

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidared financial smtements in
accordance with accountnng principles generally accepted in the Unired Seares of Amenca; this inchides desipn,
implementation, and maintenance of intermal control relevant to the preparaton and fair presentation of the consolidated
fimancial statemenes that aze [vee [poon matetial misstatement whethes due 1o [raed of eror.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Ot responsibility & to conduct the teview i accordance with Setements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AN PA. Those standards requize us o
petform procedures o obmin mited assumance as o basis for reporting whether we are awate of any materzal
maodifications that should be made to the consolidated Ananaal statements for them to be in accordance wirh accounting
principles penerally accepted in the United States of America, We believe that the results of our procedures provide a
reasonable basis for our conclusion. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meer our other ethical

responsibilities, in accosdance with the relevant ethical sequirements eelated to our reviews.
Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our eeview, we aze oot aware of any material modifications thar should be made 10 the accompanying
consolidated financial statements in order for them o be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepred in
the United Staes of America.

Going Conocern

A diseussed in Mote ]:_ certain conditions indicare that the l'.".l::lm]'::l.n}' may be unnhle to continee as a gc:ling COnCern.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments thar might be necessary should the
Company be unable to contnoe as a going concerm.

Artesian CPA, LLC

Derreer, Colorado
June 23, 2023

Artesian CPA, LLC
1624 Market Street, Suite 202 | Denver, CO B0202
p: 877.968.3330 £ 720.634.0905

infol@ArtesianCPA.com | . ArtesianCPA.com



Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors
Saleen Automotive, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Saleen Automotive, Inc. (the
Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders' deficit and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the financial statements).

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statemenits.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Saleen Automotive, Inc. as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that Saleen Automotive, Inc. will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has a net
capital deficiency and has negative cash flows from operations. In addition, the ongoing coronavirus
(COVID-19) outbreak, which was designated as a pandemic by the World Health Organization in March
2020, continues to disrupt international and U.S. economies and markets, including the Company's
operations. While the disruption Is currently expected to be temporary, there is uncertainty around the
duration and the related financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. Therefore, the
combination of these factors raises substantial doubt exists about its ability to continue as a going concern.



Management's evaluation of the events and conditions and management's plans regarding these matters
are also described in Note 1. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, in February 2016 the Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASBE") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") MNo. 2016-02, Leases, which was
subsequently amended in 2018 by ASU 2018-10, ASU 2018-11, and ASU 2018-20 (collectively, Topic 842).
The Company adopted Topic 842 using the modified retrospective approach, using a date of initial
application of April 1, 2019. The adoption of this standard on April 1, 2019 resulted in the Company
recording right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities on its consolidated balance sheets. Our opinion
Is not modified with respect to this matter.

s/ Baker Tilly US, LLP

Los Angeles, CA
September 14, 2021

iad



SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Current assers;
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
[ventorics
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred offering costs
Total current assets
Property and aquipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Repossessed assets - prototype cars
Right of w=e assets
Deposits
Oither assets
Total assets

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Current liabilities:
Accounts pavable
Accrued liabilites
Due to related party
Dreferred revems:
Long-term debt due within ome year
Lease liability, current portion, net
Total current liabilites
Long-term debt, nef of current
Operating lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities, net
Total liabilities

Commitments and comingencics

Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Preferred stock, S0.001 par value, 1,000,000 shares awthorized, U and 667 shares issued
and outstanding as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively

Commaon stock, 30.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 25,203,623 and 24,536,263 shares

issued and owstanding as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Accunulated deficit
Total stockholders' equity (deficit)

Total liabilitics and stockholders’ equity (deficit)

March 31,
2022 2021
(reviewed) {audited)

Y 2058 5 403804
48,148 192,966
7.219.333 193,267
1,041,286 68,958
98,390 .
BAINI15 HSR, 005
1,226,679 1,007 875
1,482,304 1,482,304
1,733,902 -
30019530 3,379,568
125,000 -
234,280 234,475

$ 16,231,810 § 6963217
£ 2,131,332 § 1,318,007
4175311 3,253,828
190,698 32,798

1,291 677 G41.868
E56.436 227401
1,492,714 T37.492
10,138,168 6,551,394
1,394,111 983,146

2 882725 3,268,928
82,960 55307
14,497,964 10,838,775
25204 24 537
37,267,533 36,407 490
(353,335,891 (440,307,584
1,733 846 {3,875.557)

£ 16231810 § 69631217

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report, Independent Auditor's Report, and the accompanying notes, which

are an mtegral part of these consolidated financial statements.




SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended
March 31,
2022 2021
(reviewed) { avwdit o)
Revenues:
Products 5 3137068 & 2,391,598
Services 22711 1,739
Rovalty revenue 170,096 BT 266
Total revenues 3329975 2,480, 603
Cost of revenues:
Products 3,632,013 2,429,724
Rervices 5,516 2TH, 300
Tatal cost of revenues 3657 520 2,708 024
Giross loss (327.554) (227421
Operaling expenses:
Sellmg, general and admimistrative 3,963,692 4289 142
Research and development I, S 121,214
Taotal operaling expenses 4, 272260 4,410,356
Loss from operations (4,509.814) (4,637,777
Diher income {expense):
Interest expense (83,362) (25,003)
Recovery of bad debt paid by assets 2,314,827 -
Cinin on additional recoveries on repossession of collateral on receivables 7,104,634 -
Gain on forgivencss of debt - ROE 093
Oither income 5,525 -
Other expense - 4.658)
Taotal other income 0541 424 69,332
Income/loss) before income tax 4,941,610 (3,768,445
Prowision for income taxes (benefit) 192917 (435.538)
Mel income [lozs) 5 4 74E.093 5 (3,332,907
Weighted average common shares ouistanding -
Basic 23,010,018 24,336,963

Diluted 29462 181 24,536,063

Met income (lozs) per common share -

Basic 3 .19 b {11,147
Diluted 5 .la b (0.14)

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report, Independent Auditor’s Report, and the accompanying notes, which
are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY (DEFICIT)

HBalances ai March 31, TOZ0 (awdited)

Mt loss

Balances af Mareh 31, 2021 (awndited)
Comversion of prefered stock inlo commen siock
Issunrce of warrnngs

Met ineome

Balances al March 31, ZU0I2 (reviewed)

Aualditional Totul

Preferred Siock Coammnman SLisch ainl-in Accummmlated Stlockbobde rs”
Shares A Shares At Capdtal e ficit Eaquity {[heficit)
L 5 24 556,065 £ 245317 5 MwAOT 490 F  (MGATAHTTY 0§ (541 (50
- - - - (33124907} 13,332 W7
57 24,536,90% 24 537 IR A0T 490 (A E0T 554} {3, BT5,557)

(6T {0 G 7 (6T - -

= Rl TI0 = "0, 710

- - - - 4.748.693 4,748,693

= 5 232363 5 253 0 &5 ITIETSR) 0§ (3SSSRRSly S 1,733,846

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report, Independent Auditor’s Report, and the accompanying notes, which

are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended
March 31,
2022 2021
(reviewed) {uuci ted)
Cash Mows from operating activities
Met income (loa) £ 4748093 S (3332WT)
Adjustenents (o econcile net locome (loss) to net cash wed bh opesiting activities
Depreciation and amardixation 326,009 155 T4%
Loan fee 10, (=M} -
Amaortization of loan fee 10, (M -
Frovision for logses an sccounts pecelvable - LE0, (00
Recovery of bad debl paid by asens (2,514, 82T)
Civin on additional recoveries of ri:]m.u-:ﬁinn of collateral on receivahles (7, 10, 654 ) s
Gain on forgiveness of debt - (02,001
Meon-cadh lease exponss 360,038 329,751
Liss on sale af property and equipment x 24 417
Changes in operating assets and liahalities
Accounts receivable 144,818 {50,472)
Ievenioees 315,834 [G.472)
Depsals (125,000) .
Prepaid expenses and other assets 13,577 {6l 4400
Accounts payable 577,623 104, 627
Accrued liabilities 1,362, 185 BAT, 300
Deferred revene 349 B0% 52 695
Ciperating lease liabilities 169,019 126, 680
Ceher amd deferred tax liabilities TT.653 27,654
Poel cash used in np-:ru.lin.ﬂ_ ackivities (1,149, 132) (1,720,321)
Cash Mows rom iovesting scbivilies
Porchase of propeny and equl pmen [1,224) {BA,260)
Proceeds from sale of propemy and equipment - 287,250
Moel cash J'Il'ﬂ\.'i-l‘ll:\-d. 'h:.' {used in} im'r.:ﬂ:'ing aclivities [1,224) SO, 550
Cagh Mews rom inancing aclivities:
Proceeds from related party loan, nel 137, %00 -
Repayment Lo related parly, nel = {13, 84%)
Repayeent of long-tesm debt . {14,426
Feoceeda from long-teem debt 10, M) 1,950,787
Deferred offering costs {0, 30 -
Mol cash provided hy !'lrl.an:ing aclivities 749 510 1,522 512
Mel change in cash and cosh equivalents [0, BA6) 40z, 181
Cagh and cash equivalents at beginaing of year A3, Bk L&23
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 Juss 5 3 Bl
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow infor mations
Cash paid for intergsl 5 . 5 .
Cazh paid for/{received from] income taxes, net 5 - 5 -
Supple mental disclosure of mon=cash activities
Recevery of properly amd equipment, ne 3 541,659 5 -
Recovery of inventories £ 13400 5 -
Rocovery of peposessed agsald - pratolype card £ 1,733,002 5
[suance of warranls inclwded in prepaid expenses 5 60, T1D 5 =
Bettlemieni ni'l::pl fees 1'|1n.1|_|.3h issuance of ]'l-mmim‘_l.l ke 5 150, (Wi g -
Reclossification of acerneed litigation io promissory note 5 L0, () 5 -
Reclassification from aceruwed Habilities to accounts payable £ 110, o2 5
LUnpaid prepaid expense 5 125, (D 5

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report, Independent Auditor’s Report, and the accompanying notes, which
are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



SALEEN AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Overview

Description of Business

Saleen Automotive, Inc. (“Saleen,” “we.” “us,” “our,” or the “Company™) is an engineering services and original
equipment manufacturer (“OEM™) of high-performance vehicles (*Saleen OEM™) that are built from the ground up.
The Company designs, develops, manufactures, and sells high-performance vehicles built from base chassis of major
American automobile manufacturers (“Saleen Signature Cars™). These Saleen-badged cars traditionally include
modified engines, transmissions, suspensions, interior trims, acrodynamics, and exterior modifications to set them
apart from their counterparts. All Saleen models are tested and tuned at Saleen's private facility in Corona, Califorma.
The Company also provides engineering, development, and design consulting services on a project basis for
automotive manufacturers worldwide. The Company currently has customers worldwide, including muscle and high-
performance car enthusiasts, collectors, automotive dealers, exotie car retail dealers, television and motion picture
productions, and consumers in the luxury supercar and motorsports markets.

Saleen was formed on August 6, 2021, under the laws of Delaware, and 15 headquartered at 2735 Wardlow Road,
Corona, CA 92882, Our predecessor, Saleen Automotive, Inc.. was formed under the laws of Nevada on June 24, 2011
(the “Predecessor’). On August 12, 2021 |, the Company undertook a merger transaction to reorganize under Delaware
law. As a result of that merger, Saleen became a Delaware C corporation that wholly owns SLN Merger Sub, LLC
(*SLN Sub™), into which the Predecessor was merged, and is our operating company (together, the “Saleen Entities™).
The merger closed on June 26, 2013, and the Saleen Entities merged with the Company and approximately 93% of
the Company’s common stock was owned, collectively, by Saleen and the former holders of the outstanding capital
stock of Saleen. The transaction was accounted for as a recapitalization with the Saleen Entities deemed the acquiring
companies for accounting purposes, and the Company deemed the legal acquirer. In June 2013, the Company amended
its articles of incorporation to change 1ts name to Saleen Automotive, Inc,

Except as otherwise specified, references to vears indicate the Company’s fiscal vears ended March 31, 2022 and
2021.

Asset Acquisition

On May 31, 2019, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement with 87 Supercars, LLC (™57 Supercars™)
(*S7 Purchase Agreement”™), a related party controlled by affiliates of two of the Company’s principal stockholders,
pursuant to which 87 Supercars sold all of its assets, chassis and other automotive parts relating to the manufacture of
the Saleen 57 supercar (“577), and related intellectual property, to the Company for an aggregate purchase price of
$1,482,304 comprised of a cash consideration of $800,000 and the elimination of an $682,304 accounts receivable
from 87 Supercars. The Company accounted for this purchase as an asset acquisition, and accordingly, the
consideration given for the assets was allocated to a trade name in intangible assets. Prior to the execution of the 87
Purchase Agreement, the Company manufactured the 87 under the agreement with 87 Supercars. 87 Purchase
Agreement contains a provision that the Company pay 87 Supercars up to four payments of $50,000 each for a sale
of 87 through May 31, 2021, subject to the certain conditions included in the 87 Purchase Agreement. During this
two-year period, the Company did not sell any 87, and therefore, did not make any payments to the sellers of 87
Supercars.

Going Concern

During fiscal years 2022 and 2021, the Company recorded net income of $4,748,693 and net loss of $3,332,.907,
respectively, however in 2022 the net income was attributable to a non-cash gain of $9,619.461 from the recovery of
bad debt paid assets and gain on additional recoveries on repossession of collateral on receivables from JSAT (see
Note 4).  During fiscal years 2022 and 2021, loss from operations was 54,599,814 and 54,637,777, respectively.
During fiscal years 2022 and 2021, net cash used in operating activities was $1,149,132 and §1,721,321, respectively.
As of March 31, 2022, the Company had limited cash of 52,958 and the working capital deficit of $1,728,053 The



Company is in default on various debt obligations, including secured debts as of March 31, 2022, These factors, among
others, raise substantial doubt about the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for the next twelve months 1s dependent upon 1ts abihity to generate sutficient cash flows
from operations to meet its obligations, which it has not been able to accomplish to date, and/or to obtain additional
capital financing. No assurance can be given that the Company will be successful in these efforts. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts
or the amounts and classification of liabilities.

During the assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, management identified the conditions
and events necessary for profitable operations, extending the evaluation period beyond the current vear end, to a
reasonable period of time. The Company may need to raise capital to meet its debt service obligations and to fund its
working capital needs. The Company continues to explore and evaluate opportunities to raise capital, including
through equity financings, alternative sources of debt, and strategic transactions. To accomplish this, the Company
has engaged investment advisors, brokers, and other third parties. However, none of these potential sources of capital
are currently assured. Taking into consideration the Company’s current operation’s inability to generate sufficient
cash flows to meet its obligations, and dependence on Ford Motor Company for base model vehicles, the Company’s
management has concluded it cannot with certainty determine if its actions will imitigate the conditions and events that
raise doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis, which
contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects
on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classifications of liabilities that may result from
uncertainty related to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Preparation

These consohdated tinancial statements include the accounts of Saleen Automotive, Inc. and 1ts wholly owned
subsidianes. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. In the opimion of management, the
consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, which are normal and recurring in nature, necessary for fair
financial statement presentation. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates. Certain prior
period amounts in the consohdated financial statements and accompanying notes have been reclassified to conform to
the current period’s presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the reported net loss.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Saleen
Signature Cars, a California corporation, and Saleen Sales Corporation, a California corporation, and SLN Merger
Sub, LLC, a Delaware corporation. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated 1in consohdation.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers, in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods and services. For performance
obligations related to substantially all its products, control transfers at a point in time either upon shipment of the
product to the customer or delivery. Except for warranty claims, the Company has no post-sales obligations. Amounts
billed to the Company’s customers for shipping and handling are recorded in revenue. Shipping and handling costs
incurred by the Company are included in cost of revenues.

The Company recognizes revenue from its engineering and design contracts and consulting services contracts as the
services are provided and accepted by its customers. Deferred revenue is recorded for any payments received for



services yet to be completed. Under the terms of its engineering design and development contracts, costs are invoiced
as incurred plus a markup.,

Fariahle Consideration

Our revenue generating activities include variable consideration which is recorded as a reduction of the transaction
price based upon expected amounts at the time revenue for the corresponding product sale is recogmzed. Estimates of
variable consideration and determination of whether to include estimated amounts in the transaction price are based
largely on an assessment of the anticipated performance and all information (historical, current, and forecasted) that
is reasonably available.

Returns for products sold are estimated using the expected value method and are recorded as a reduction in reported
revenues at the time of sale based upon historical product return experience and 1s adjusted for known trends to arrive
at the amount of consideration to which the Company expect to receive. Estimated amounts are included i the
transaction price to the extent it 1s probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the varable consideration 1s resolved.

Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities consist of amounts accrued relating to performance obligations vet to be satisfied and amounts
accrued relating to contracts that do not meet the criteria as a contract with a customer and cannot yet be recorded in
revenue. Certain product sales require customers to make deposits at the time of signing the related sales order. The
Company receives either partial or full deposits related to the sales orders in advance of shipment and 15 generally
paid in full prior to the shipment of the products. These customer deposits are recorded as deferred revenue, which the
Company expects to be realized in less than a vear. For engineering service contracts where the performance obligation
is not completed, a contract liability is recorded for any payvments received in advance of the performance obligation
being completed or satisfied.

Warranties

The Company provides a three-year or 36,000 miles new vehicle limited warranty for certain products. This vehicle
limited warranty applies only to installed parts and/or assemblies of the Company’s products. All unaltered parts are
covered under the original full warranty of the OEM manufacturer of the base vehicles. Accrued warranty costs are
included 1n accrued habilities in the consohdated balance sheets,

Advertising Cosfs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included n selling, general and admimistrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations. Advertising expenses were $186,414 and $172,742 for fiscal years 2022 and
2021, respectively, which are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in statements of operations.

Research and Development Expenses
In accordance with ASC 730, research and development costs are expensed in the period incurred.
Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and habilines are recognized for temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of assets and habilines and the amounts that are reported in the income tax returns. Deferred taxes
are evaluated for realization on a jurisdictional basis. The Company records valuation allowances to reduce deferred
tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. In making this assessment, management analyses
future taxable income, reversing temporary differences and ongoing tax planning strategies. Should a change in
circumstances lead to a change in judgment about the realizability of deferred tax assets in future years, the Company
will adjust related valuation allowances in the period that the change in circumstances occurs, along with a
corresponding increase or charge to income.

10



The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax
position will be sustamed upon examination by the taxing authorities based on the techmical ments of 1ts position. The
tax benefit recognized in the financial statements for a particular tax position is based on the largest benefit that is
more likely than not to be realized. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits is adjusted as appropriate for changes in
facts and circumstances, such as significant amendments to existing tax laws, new regulations or interpretations by
the taxing authorities, new information obtained during a tax examination, or resolution of an examination. The
Company recognizes both accrued interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as a component of
provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of operations.

The application of tax laws and regulations 1s subject to legal and factual interpretation, judgment, and uncertainty.
Tax laws and regulations may change as a result of changes in fiscal policy, changes in legislation, the evolution of
regulations and court rulings. Therefore, the actual liability for LS. or foreign taxes may be materially different from
management’s estimates, which could require the Company to record additional tax lhiabilities or to reduce previously
recorded tax hiabilines, as applicable.

Cash

Cash includes cash on hand and cash on deposit at financial institutions. Cash 15 stated at cost, which approximates
fair value. Cash is maintained in bank deposit accounts that may exceed federally insured limits. As of March 31,
2022 and 2021, the Company's cash in bank balances exceed federally insured limits by $0 and $33,279, respectively,
subjecting 1t to sigmficant credit nsk and potential losses,

Bank Overdrafis

The Company reports bank overdrafis as accounts payable on the consolidated balance sheet. Bank overdrafis were
$100,954 and $0 as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Fair Value Measuremenis

The Company account for certain assets and liabilities at fair value, The hierarchy below lists three levels of fair value
based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market. The Company
categorizes each of its fair value measurements in one of those three levels based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

® Level | - inputs are based on unadjusted quoted prices 1n active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company have the ability to access. An active market 15 defined as a market m which transactions for the assets or
habilities occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

o Level 2 — inputs are based on quoted prices of similar instruments i active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in market that are not active, and model-based valuation techmiques for which all sigmficant
assumptions are observable in the market or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full
term of the assets or liabilities.

o Level 3 — mputs are generally unobservable inputs for the asset or hability, which are typically based on
management’s estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets and liabilities. The
fair values are therefore determined using model-based techniques, including option pricing models and discounted
cash flow models.

The fair value of the PPP Loan, SBA Loan, promissory notes and convertible promissory note is estimated by using
current applicable rates for similar instruments as of the balance sheet date and an assessment of the credit rating. The
carrying values of the PPP Loan and SBA Loan as of March 31, 2022, approximate fair value because the interest rate
vield is near current market rates for comparable debt instruments. The fair value of the convertible promissory note
15 estimated by using a discounted cash flow analvsis using borrowing rates available to the Company for debt
instruments with similar terms and maturities and is classified in Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. Our other current
financial assets and current financial liabilities have fair value that approximate their carrying value.



Income floss) per Share

Basic income (loss) per common share 1s computed by dividing income (loss) attributable to common stockholders
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is

computed by dividing net income (loss) attnbutable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
common shares that would have been outstanding during the period assuming the issuance of common stock for all

potential dilutive common shares outstanding. Potential common shares consist of shares issuable upon the exercise
of stock options and warrants and the conversion of convertible notes pavable.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share for the years
ended:

Year Ended
March 31,
2022 21

MNumerator: Net income (loss) 5 4,748,693 § (3,332,907)
Denomanator; Weighted average common shares oulstanding- basic 25,010,018 24 536,963
Denonmunator: Weighted average common shares outstanding- diluted 29,462,181 24,536,963
MNet income (loss) per share - basic 5 .19 5 i0.14)
Met income (loss) per share - diluted 5 0.16 b i0.14)

The following table sets forth the a) the dilutive items included in the weighted average common shares — diluted
amount above as of March 31, 2022 and b) the number of potential common shares excluded from the calculations of
net loss per diluted share because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive as of March 31, 2021:

March 31,
2022 2021
Convertible note 2,229,941 2,129,941
Preferred stock (as converted o common stock) - fibb, 660
Stock options - 2,602
Warrants 2,222 222 |, 666,663
4452163 4,465 866

Accounts Receivable

The Company extends credit to its customers. An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for estimated losses
resulting from the mability of the Company’s customers to make required payments. The Company specifically
analyzes the age of customer balances, historical bad debt experience, customer creditworthiness and changes in
customer payment terms when making estimates of the collectability of the Company’s accounts receivable balances,
If the Company determines that the financial condition of any of its customers has deteriorated, whether due to
customer specific or general economic issues, an increase in the allowance may be made. After all attempts to collect
a receivable have failed, the receivable is written off. As of March 31, 2021, the allowance for doubtful accounts was
$2,514,827, all of which relate to the receivable from JSAT that was fully reserved. In 2022, the Company recovered
$2,514,827 of the previous bad debt as per its settlement with JSAT (see Note 4), which was recorded as other income
in the consolidated statements of operations. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts as of March 31, 2022,

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or the net realizable value. Cost is determined on an average cost basis
which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Net realizable value 15 the estimated selling prices in the
ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and transportation. Inventory
balances are evaluated for excess quantities and obsolescence on a regular basis by analyvzing estimated demand,
inventory on hand, sales levels and other information and reduce inventory balances to net realizable value for excess
and obsolete inventory based on this analysis. At the point of the write-down recognition, a new, lower cost basis for
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that imventory 15 established, and subsequent changes 1n facts and circumstances do not result in the restoration or
mncrease 1n that newly established cost basis.

Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment 1s
recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which for machinery and equipment
is between three and seven years, including product tooling and manufacturing process equipment; between five and
seven years for furniture and fixtures, and the shorter of lease term or useful life for leasehold improvements. Our
museum collection of automobiles held for exhibiion purposes 15 not depreciated. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred. Upon retirement or sale, the cost and related accumulated depreciation and
amortization of disposed assets are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in other
income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are comprised of indefimte-lived assets acquired in the asset acquisition from 87 Supercars in May
2019 for a value of §1,482,304.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized but are evaluated at least annually to determine whether the
indefinite wseful life is appropriate. The trade name acquired has been assigned an indefinite life as management
currently anticipate that the trade names will contribute cash flows to the Company indefinitely.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed at least annually for impairment. In management’s evaluation of
indefinite-lived assets, the Company performed a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the intangible asset is less than its carryving amount. If the qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Company proceeds to test indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment, including comparing the
fair value to the carrving value. Fair value determined based upon estimated discounted future cash flows. Based on
management’s assessment, the Company believes there was no impairment of the indefinite-lived intangible assets as
of both March 31, 2022 and 2021,

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets, including property and equipment
and amortizable ntangible assets, held and used n 1ts operations for impairment on at least an annual basis or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. When such
factors and circumstances exist, the Company compares the projected undiscounted future net cash flows associated
with the related asset or group of assets over their estimated useful lives against their respective carrying amount,
These projected future cash flows may vary significantly over time as a result of increased competition, changes in
technology, fluctuations in demand, consolidation of its customers and reductions in average sales prices. If the
carrying value 18 determined not to be recoverable from future operating cash flows, the asset is deemed impaired, and
an impairment loss is recognized to the extent the carryving value exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset. The fair
value of the asset or asset group is based on market value when available, or when unavailable, on discounted expected
cash flows. Management believes there was no impairment of long-lived assets as of both March 31, 2022 and 2021.

Convertible Instrumenis

GAAP requires companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and account for them as free-
standing derivative financial instruments according to certain criteria. The critena include circumstances in which (a)
the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative instrument are not clearly and closely related to the
cconomic characteristics and risks of the host contract, (b) the hybrid instrument that embodies both the embedded
derivative instrument and the host contract is not re-measured at fair value under otherwise applicable generally
accepted accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they occur and (c) a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a derivative instrument.
An exception to this rule i1s when the host instrument is deemed to be conventional as that term 15 described under
applicable GAAP.
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When the Company has determined that the embedded conversion options should not be bifurcated from their host
instruments, the Company records, when necessary, discounts to convertible notes for the intrinsic value of conversion
options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences between the fair value of the underlying common
stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the effective conversion price embedded in the note, Debt
discounts under these arrangements are amortized over the term of the related debt to their stated date of redemption.
The Company also records, when necessary, deemed dividends for the intrinsic value of conversion options embedded
in preferred shares based upon the differences between the fair value of the underlying common stock at the
commitment date of the transaction and the effective conversion price embedded in the preferred shares.

Beneficial Conversion Features

Accounting for Convertible Notes and Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features Convertible debt 1s accounted
for under the guidelines established by ASC 470-20, Debi with Conversion and Other Options. ASC 470-20 governs
the calculation of an embedded beneficial conversion, which 1s treated as an additional discount to the instruments
where derivative accounting does not apply. The amount of the beneficial conversion feature may reduce the carrying
value of the instrument. The discounts relating to the ininal recording of the denvatives or beneficial conversion
features are accreted over the term of the debt. When beneficial conversion features are based on a future contingent
event, the beneficial conversion feature is deferred and recorded at the time when the contingency no longer exists.

Leases

The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in right-of-use
(“ROU™) assets and operating lease liabilities on its consolidated balance sheets.

ROU assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent
its obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at the
commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As most of the Company’s
leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information
available at the commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. The Company uses the
impheit rate when readily determinable. The ROU asset also includes any lease payments made and excludes lease
incentives, The lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when 1t 15 reasonably certain that the
Company will exercise that option. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

For lease agreements with lease and non-lease components, the Company accounts for those components as a single
lease component. The Company does not present short-term leases on the balance sheet, as those leases have a lease
term of twelve months or less at inception and do not contain purchase options or renewal terms that the Company
believes 15 reasonably certain to exercise.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures all stock-based awards granted to employees, directors and contractors based on the fair value
on the date of the grant and recognizes compensation expense for those awards over the requisite service period, which
is generally the vesting period of the respective award. The Company 1ssues stock-based awards with only service-
based vesting conditions and records the expense for these awards using the straight-line method. For awards with
performance-based vesting conditions, the Company records the expense 1if and when the Company concludes that it
is probable that the performance condition will be achieved.

The Company classifies stock-based compensation expense in its consolidated statement of operations in the same

manner 1n which the award recipient’s payroll costs are classified or in which the award recipient’s service payments
are classified.

The fair value of each stock option or warrant grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. The Company historically has been a private company and lacks company-specific historical and
imphed volatility information for its stock. Therefore, 1t estimates 1ts expected stock price volatility based on the
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historical volatility of publicly traded peer companies and expects to continue to do so until such time as 1t has adequate
historical data regarding the volatility of its own traded stock price. The expected term of the Company’s stock options
has been determined utilizing the “simplified” method for awards that qualify as “plain-vanilla™ options. The risk-free
interest rate is determined by reference to the U.S, Treasury vield curve in effect at the time of grant of the award for
time periods approximately equal to the expected term of the award. Expected dividend yield is based on the fact that
the Company has never paid cash dividends on common stock and does not expect to pay any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. The Company recognizes forfeitures as they occur as there is msulficient historical data to
accurately determine future forfeitures rates. Determining the appropriate fanr value of stock-based awards requires
the input of subjective assumptions. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based awards represent
management’s best estimates and involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management’s judgment. As a
result, if factors change and management uses different assumptions, stock-based compensation expense could be
materially different for future awards.

The Company records an expense for stock issued for services as an expense based on the number of shares 1ssued
and fair value of the underlying stock 1ssued to the recipient.

Deferred Offering Costs

The Company complies with the requirements of FASB ASC 340-10-5899-1 with regards to offering costs. Prior to
the completion of an offering, offering costs are capitalized. The deferred offering costs are charged to additional paid-
in capital or as a discount to debt, as applicable, upon the completion of an offering or to expense if the offering 1s not
completed. As of March 31, 2022, the Company had capitalized $98 390 in deferred offering costs.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU™) No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), as
amended (“ASCE42™), which modifies lease accounting for lessees to increase transparency and comparability by
recording lease assets and liabilities for operating leases and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements.
The Company adopted ASC 842 effective Apnl 1,2019, using a modified retrospective transition method, under which
the amounts in prior periods presented were not restated. As permitted under the transition guidance, the Company
carried forward the assessment of whether its contracts contain or are leases, classification of its leases, and remaining
lease terms. The Company also used hindsight in determining lease terms. Upon adoption, the Company recorded
54,013,490 of right-of-use (“ROU") assets and 54,115,478 of lease liabilities on the Company's consolidated balance
sheet.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In August 2020, the FASEB issued ASU No. 2020-06, Debr—Debr with Conversion and Other Options {Subtopic 4 700-
200 and Dervivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Accounting for Convertible
[nstrumenis and Contracts in an Entity's Own Equity. This ASU amends the guidance on convertible instruments and
the derivatives scope exception for contracts in an entity’s own equity, and also improves and amends the related
earnings per share guidance for both Subtopics. The ASU will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2023, mcluding interim penods within those tiscal years and early adoption 15 permutted. Management does not
expect material impacts from this ASU on the Company’s consolidated financial statements,

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Management does not believe that any other recently 1ssued, but not yet effective, accounting standards could have a
material effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. As new accounting pronouncements are
1ssued, the Company will adopt those that are applicable under the circumstances.

Note 3 — Revenue Recognition

Service Revenue from Saleen 81
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The Company provided engineering, design, and development services to JSAT under a Consulting Agreement
entered in September 2016 and a Saleen Engimeering Services Agreement (“Engineering Service Agreement”) entered
into 1 April 2018, Under the Engineering Services Agreement, the Company agreed to provide engineering, design,
and development services for the Saleen S1 and a sports utility vehicles to be distributed in the United States and
China. The Company entered two addendums on the Engineening Services Agreement, one dated September 29, 2019
(the “September Addendum™) and the other dated December 20, 2019 (the “December Addendum™). The September
Addendum increased the scope of the contract, price and added distinct deliverables and performance obligations, and
thus, the Company accounted for this contract as a separate and distinet contract. The December Addendum increased
the price but did not add any distinet deliverables, and thus, the Company accounted for as a modification of the
original contract with the change being accounted for prospectively. The Company expected to complete the
engineering, designing, and developing of the Saleen 81 n the fiscal year 2020, Under the terms of the Enginecring
Services Apreement, as amended, the total contract amount was approximately $31.6 million. An early termination
fee based on a percentage of the remaining unbilled contract amount would apply in the event the contract was
cancelled by JSAT. See Note 4 for further detail.

The Company also entered a Saleen S1 Cup Vehicle Development and Production Agreement (“Cup Agreement™)
with JSAT in Movember 2018, and later amended in May 2019, Based on management’s evaluation of this
amendment, the amendment clarified the terms of the original Cup Agreement and was accounted for as a modification
of the original contract. Under the Cup Agreement, the Company agreed to provide engineering, design, and
development services for the Saleen 51 racing vehicle, including prototype development and assembly of racing
vehicles to be used in the 51 Cup Racing Series in the United States and China. The Cup Agreement was to provide
for aggregate revenues to the Company of $15.6 million.

Disaggregated Revenues

The following table shows disaggregated revenues by major source:

Year Ended March 31,
2022 {1y |
Products
Sigmature cars (1) % 2756587 3 2130576
Reposessed cars 3735 MM} 230, MM}
Other 5,581 11,4622
Tortal 3137168 2,191 508
Services
Oiher 22,711 1.73%
Total 22,711 1,739
Rovalty revenue | 70096 B7.266
Total revenues ) 3329975 ) 2 AR0,603

(1) Signature cars include Saleen branded Ford Mustangs, Ford trucks and Tesla S vehicles.

Note 4 — JSAT Settlement Agreement

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020, the Company re-evaluated the relationship with JSAT due to thewr
inconsistent payment timmng and the fact that the Company and JSAT have placed this agreement on hold. As a result
of this revaluation, the Company determined that it was no longer probable that the Company would collect the
consideration from JSAT, and therefore, the related receivable from JSAT was reserved as of March 31, 2020, As of
March 31, 2021, the allowance for doubtful accounts pertaining to JSAT was $2.514,827, which was recovered in the
year ended March 31, 2022 (see below).

In Apnl 2020, the Company secured a consent to hien the S§1 cars and related tangible and intangible assets. Per the

Engineering Services Agreement noted in Note 3, if JSAT defaulted in paying the outstanding invoice, the Company
was entitled to take title and ownership of these S1 cars and related tangible and intangible assets.
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In Apnl 2021, the 51 cars and related assets were recerved by the Company. The details of the assets recerved pursuant
to the settlement agreement are as follows:

Inventories 5 7,541,900
Property and equipment, net 543,659
Repossessed assets - prototype cars 1,733,902

Total 5 9,619,461
Recovery of bad debt paid by assets 5 2,514,827
Gain on additional recoveries of repossession of collateral on receivables 7.104,634

Total S 9,619.46]

The Company received 24 81 cars, 2 of which are sull in China, and 5 prototype cars, as well as spare automobile
parts and tooling equipment. The Company also received intangible assets consisting of patents and trademarks,
however the value of the intangible assets are indeterminable and thus the Company recorded no value in the
consolidated financial statements.

Note 5 — Consolidated Financial Statements Details

The following tables show the Company’'s consolidated financial statement details as of March 31, 2022 and 2021:

fnventories
March 31,
2022 2021
Automobile parts ¥ 1,832,740 b 95,363
Finished goods - 51 cars 5,373,235 -
Work-in-progress 13,358 97,904
Total $ 7.219.333 $ 193267

Pursuant to the JSAT settlement (see Note 4), the Company received an aggregate of 7,341,900 in inventories,
including £5,645,963 in finished goods and $1,695,937 in automobile parts.

Properity and Equipmeni, Ner

March 31,
2022 2021

Leaschold improvements - office 5 142,091 5 142,091
Machinery and equipment 2,236,132 487,162
Museum collection automobiles 281,412 281,412
Other automobiles 237,355 237,355
Furniture and fixtures 156,711 156,711
Computer and software 91,629 90,729

Total 3,145,330 2,395 461
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,915.651) (1,387,586)

Property and equipment, net 5 1.226,679 5 1007875

Pursuant to the JSAT settlement (see Note 4), the Company received $343.659 in machinery and equipment.

Depreciation and amortization expense for the vears ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted to $326,079 and
$255,749, respectively.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are comprised of indefinite-lived assets acquired in the asset acquisition from 57 Supercars in May
2019 for a value of $1,482,304,

Accrued Liabilities
March 31,
2022 2021
Accrued expenses 5 478 685 3 595,409
Accrued compensation 2033773 1,760,830
Income taxes pavable 1.062,853 BO7,589
Total sccrued liabilities 5 4. 175,311 3 3,253 B2

_ . =t =

Significant Concentrations

For fiscal year 2022, revenues from two product customers represented 14% and 11% of total revenue, respectively.
A

For fiscal year 2021, revenues from two product customers and one service customer represented 18%, 153% and 12%
of total revenue, respectively.

The Company utihizes automobile platform vehicles for its Signature Cars from therr manufacturers including Ford
and Tesla and generally receive the base vehicle platforms directly from their dealers. The Company enter into
sourcing agreements with individual car dealerships but do not have supply agreements with the manufacturers,
Accordingly, the Company’s supply of base vehicle platforms may be limited to the allocation allotted from its source
dealerships.

Note 6 — Debt

Our debt consisted of the following:

As ol and for the vear ended March 31,

a2 21

Princigal Apcnudl intgrvst Ieferesd eaprms Frindipal  Accred inleresl Beferest ouprms
Payelheck pralecmon program |oas, Jue Fobrury 20255 g dua il § ShTs 5 LRS! T oAUl § T35 g q33
Saimal] Burarisa adiiiirestran on lean, dee Augieg 20150 SIH1LDIHI 134T oAz 1 &0 0HI 14aT 14RT
W Nt Fural 1 loan - related party, doe Mevomber 2071 3500 1, 1E5 31,155 - - -
Cortitude Trasi - relmed party, Promissory node doe July 2022 | 5L 1,058 | 556
Ursecured coimyemble mine, pasi dus LIH1LZiHI i M 7 N} TIHLHI SHG TIHHI
EalsirSar Soldioie, LLC d: Ageil 20727 [EEE L] 11,5 11,530 - - -
Resco promissory nole, due on desand SETSE 14, B 2835 SETSE 11.86E I 95K
Ciber 17.68% . L (K 1585 . Ll 83
Tamal el 134,738 A3, 3482 12141547 hE AT 25 IHIE
Laa; aniists s wilhin oo year A56430 - 227401 - -
Long-term deki 1304011 § 113,75 5 23,562 £ GRLl4n & fis [T & 25 IHIE

2020 Pavcheck Prorection Program Loan

On April 16, 2020, the Company entered into the 2020 PPP Loan with a principal amount of $899,110 through Union
Bank under the PPP administered by the SBA and established as part of the CARES Act. The PPP Loan bears interest
at 1.0% per annum and matures on April 16, 2022 with the interest and principal payments deferred to the date that
SBA remits the borrower’s loan forgiveness amount to the lender. The amount borrowed under the 2020 PPP Loan is
guaranteed by the SBA and is eligible for forgiveness in an amount equal to the sum of the eligible costs, including
pavroll, benefits, rent and utilities, incurred by the Company during the 24-week period beginning on the date the
Company received the proceeds. The 2020 PPP Loan contains customary events of default, and the occurrence of an
event of default may result in a claim for the immediate repayment of all amounts outstanding under the 2020 PPP
Loan, In January 2021, the full amount outstanding was forgiven resulting in a gain of 5898,993 included 1n other
income, net in the consolidated statements of operations. Non-cash financing activities involving debt resulted in a
gain on forgiveness of debt of $898,993 for fiscal year 2021,
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2021 Paycheck Protection Program Loan

On February 25, 2021, the Company entered into the 2021 PPP Loan with a principal amount of $894,111 through
Union Bank under the PPP administered by the SBA and established as part of the CARES Act. The 2021 PPP Loan

bears interest at 1.0% per annum and matures on February 25, 2026 with the interest and principal payments deferred
to the date that SBA remits the borrower’s loan forgiveness amount to the lender. The amount borrowed under the
2021 PPP Loan 1s guaranteed by the SBA and 1s eligible for forgiveness in an amount equal to the sum of the eligible
costs, mcluding payroll, benefits, rent and utilines, mcurred by the Company dunng the 24-week peniod beginming on
the date the Company received the proceeds. The 2021 PPP Loan contains customary events of default, and the
occurrence of an event of default may result in a claim for the immediate repayment of all amounts outstanding under
the 2021 PPP Loan. In November 2022, the full amount of the Company’s 2021 PPP Loan was forgiven (see Note
13),

Amended Small Business Administration Loan

On August 18, 2020, the Company entered into the SBA Loan with a principal amount of $150,000 with the SBA.
The SBA Loan bears interest at 3.75% per annum and matures on August 18, 2050 with the first 11 months of interest
and principal payvments deferred. The SBA Loan is secured by substantially all the assets of the Company. The SBA
Loan contains customary events of default, and the occurrence of an event of default may result in a claim for the
immediate repavment of all amounts outstanding under the SBA Loan.

On Movember 21, 2021, the Company amended its loan with the SBA to increase the principal amount of the loan to
300,000 (the “Amended SBA Loan”). The Company expects to pay installments on the principal and interest of
52,532 per month beginning 24 months from the date of the original note, August 18, 2020, Annual interest accrues
at 3.75% on the funds actually advanced from date of each advance. The balance and interest will be payvable 30 years
from the date of the original note or August 18, 2050, The SBA has a continuing security interest in the Company’s
assets, including but not limited to inventory, equipment, instruments, including promissory notes, chattel paper,
accounts receivables, etc. The Amended SBA Loan has a number of conditions. one of which is a limit on the
Company’s ability to raise funds through security offerings. Under this provision, the Company has agreed that the
SBA has the right to require full payment of the balance of the loan or require a portion of the proceeds be applied to
reduce the outstanding balance of the loan. Furthermore, the Company agreed that such proceeds will not be applied
in lieu ot scheduled payments.

Unsecured Converiible Note

As of March 31, 2022 and 2021, there was an unsecured convertible promissory note the Company entered on March
28, 2014 (*Convertible Note™). The Convertible Mote bears interest at 7.0% per annum, was due on March 28, 2017,
and is currently in default. The Convertible Note currently will convert at the lesser of $0.07 or 70% of the average of
the Company's stock price over a specified period of time if it were publicly traded. The Company is currently in the
process of settling the Convertible Note by conversion.

W-Net - Secured Promissory Note — Refated Party

On May 28, 2021, the Company entered into a secured promissory note with W-Net Fund (“W-Net Note™) for an
amended principal amount of $350,000. The W-Net Note bears interest at 12% per annum and matured on November
28,2021, and therefore 1s in default. The W-Net Note 1s secured by automobiles as the Company has granted a security
interest to W-Net Fund in certain automobiles owned by the Company under the terms of a security agreement. The
W-Net Note contains mandatory prepayvments after the receipt of any proceeds from the sale of the Company s equity
securities or Saleen 51 automobiles. The W-Net Loan contains customary events of default, and the occurrence of an
event of default may result in a claim for the immediate repayment of all amounts outstanding under the W-Net Loan.

Certitude Trusi — Related Party
On July 13, 2021, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount of $150,000 to Certitude Trust (“Certitude

Note™) in connection with a litigation settlement. The Certitude Note bears interest at 6% per annum and is due on
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July 13, 2022, or upon completion of an equity financing during fiscal vear 2022 , whichever is sooner. The Certitude
Mote 15 currently 1n default.

Industry Siar Solutions

On April 20, 2021, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount of $180,000 to Industry Star Solutions, LLC
(“Industry Star Note™). The note was issued as a non-cash reclassification from accrued liabilities. The Industry Star
Note bears interest at 7% per annum and 1s due on April 20, 2022, The Industry Star Note 15 currently in default. In
June 2022, the Company negotiated a settlement agreement with Industry Star (see Note 13).

Rexco Promissory Note

On June 17, 2016, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount of $389,922 to Larry R. Haupert {Rexco)
Promissory Note. The Rexco Note bears interest at 5% per annum and was due on August 16, 2016. The Rexco Note
is currently in default.

Contractual Maturities of Debt Obligations

The aggregate contractual maturities of all borrowings due subsequent to March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
2023 5 B56,436
2024 -
2025 10,124
2026 906,332
2027 12,687
Thereafier 464,968
Total $2.250,547
Note 7 - Leases

The Company has lease arrangements for its facilities,

In September 2017, the Company entered into two operating lease agreements for its facilities. Both leases commenced
in February 1, 2018 and expire on January 31, 2028, The lease agreements require total monthly base rent payments
of $51,265 for the first year, with annual escalations of 3%. The leases required a total security deposit of $55,000.
The Company 1s responsible operating expenses, including property taxes, insurance, maintenance and management
fees.

In response to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s operations, beginning April 1, 2020, the
Company suspended the payment of rent and did not make lease payments under its existing lease agreements for one
of its two facility leases. During the suspension of payments, the Company continued to recognize expenses and
liabilities for lease obligations and corresponding lease assets on the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
ASC B42,

Total expenses related to lease agreements were 5882, 874 and 891,966 for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

As of March 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrving amount of the operating ROU asset was $3.019,530, net of accumulated
amortization of $1,095.948 and $3.379,568, net of accumulated amortization of $735,910, each respectively. As of
March 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amount of the operating lease liabilities was 54,375,439, net of unamortized
interest of 1,094,355 and 54,006,420, net of unamortized interest of $1,439,555,

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases was as follows:
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Assets:
Right of usc asscts
Lease liabilities:
Lease liability, current portion

Operating lease liabilities
Total operating lease habihities

The following table includes supplemental information:

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years)
Weighted-average discount rate

Maturities of lease habilities as of March 31, 2022 are as follows:

March 31,

2022 2021

3.01%,530 $ 3,379,568

1,492,714 $ 737492
2 HR2, 725 3,268,928
4375439 % 4,006,420
March 31,
2022 2021
5.54 .80
10,000 10000

Fiscal Year Operating Leases
2023 5 1,802,366
2024 716,731
2025 738,232
2026 Tal,380
2027 783,191
Thereatier HHE. B9
Total lease payments 5469 794
Less: imputed interest {1,094 355)
Total lease obligations 5 4,375,439

Note 8 — Commitments and Contingencies

Lirigation and Claims

The Company is involved in certain legal proceedings that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business,
The Company 1s currently a party to several legal proceedings related to claims for payment that are currently accrued
for in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as other current liabilities or accounts payable, The Company
accrues for matters when losses are deemed probable and estimable. Legal expenses associated wiath the contingency
are expensed as incurred. The Company 1s not currently involved m any legal proceedings that could potentially have

a material impact on the consohdated financial statements.
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Note 9 — Income Taxes

The provision for mcome taxes consisted of the following:

Year Ended
March 31,
2022 2021
Current
Federal 5 164,424 b -
State 840 1,000
Total current 165,264 (Y
Deferred
Federal 20,752 (517,53K)
State 6,901 81,000
Total deferred 27,653 (436,518)
Provision for income taxes (benefit) 5 192,917 b (435,538)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The significant components
of the deferred tax assets and habilities are as follows:

March 31,
2022 2021
Deferred tax assels:
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,056,576 5 1,389,000
Lease liability 1,224,405 1,007,218
Beserve and allowances - GEERUE
(nher 99,213 99,213
Total deferred tax assets 2,380,194 3,184,431
Less: valuation allowance (1,535,221) (2,238, 7046)
Total deferred tax assets, net #44.973 045,725
Deferred tax liabilities:
Right of use assets (244,973 (945,725)
Intangible assets (852,960) (55,307)
Total deferred tax liabilities (927,934) (1,001,032)
MNet deferved tax liabilities 5 (82,960) 8 (55,307)

The net deferred tax liability as of March 31, 2022 and 2021 principally relates to tax amortization of intangibles that
have an indefinite reversal period for book purposes, also known as a “naked credit deferred tax liability,” that cannot
be considered as a source of income to recover the deferred tax asset. This deferred tax Liability relates to the
Company’s asset acquisition of indefinite lived intangible assets for the 87 supercars purchase which for tax purposes
will be amortized over a 15-year period.

The recovery of bad debt paid by assets and gain on additional recoveries on repossession of collateral on receivables
in 2022 were considered taxable items. The Company utilized net operating loss carryforwards to partially offset
these taxable gains.

The Company evaluates whether a valuation allowance should be established against the Company’s deferred tax

assets based on the consideration of all available evidence using a “more Likely than not™ standard. In making such
judgments, significant weight is given to evidence that can be objectively verified. As of March 31, 2022 and 2021, a
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valuation allowance of $1,535,221 and $2,238,706 was recorded, respectively. Deferred tax assets were calculated
using the Company’s combined effective tax rate, which it estimated to be 28.0%. The effective rate was 3.9% for
fiscal year 2022 after changes in the valuation allowance and utilization of its deferred tax assets,

As of each reporting date, the Company considers new evidence, both positive and negative, that could impact its
view with regard to future realization of available deferred tax assets. As of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022, the
Company did not recognize an income tax benefit for any of its deferred tax assets, primarily related to net operating
loss carry forwards, reserves and allowances, and lease liabilities, because the Company determined that sufficient
negative evidence continued to exist to conclude it was uncertain that the Company would have sufficient future
taxable mncome to utilize its deferred tax assets.

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“IRC”) Section 382 (“§3827) limits the use of NOL and tax credit carry
forwards in certain situations where changes occur in the stock ownership of a company. In general, if the Company
experience a greater than 50% aggregate change in ownership over a 3-year period, the Company 15 subject o an
annual limitation under [RC §382 on the utilization of the Company’s pre-change NOL carry forwards. California and
other states have similar laws. The annual limitaion generally 15 determined by multiplyving the value of the
Company’s stock at the ime of such ownership change (subject to certain adjustments) by the applicable long-term
exempt rate. Such limitations may result in expiration of a portion of the NOL carry forwards before utilization. The
Company has currently recorded an uncertain tax position due to the Company’s filing of their March 31, 2020 and
2021 tax returns which may have used NOL’s that should have been limited by §382. The Company has recorded an
uncertain tax position liability of $233.000 and 288,000 as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively on the
accompanying balance sheet as a component of accrued liabilities. The uncertain tax position includes accrued interest
and penalties of approximately $70,000 and $70,000 as of March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, on the
accompanying balance sheet as a component of accrued liabilities. As of March 31, 2022, we had approximately (i)
50 of federal NOL carry forwards and (i1) $2.880,030 of state NOL carryforwards, which begin to expire in 2029, In
2022, all federal NOLs were applied against taxable income. As of March 31, 2021, we had (i) $4.,050,000 of federal
NOL carry forwards, of which 54,050,000 will expire from 2024 through 2027, and (i1) 7,713,000 of state NOL carry
forwards, which begin to expire in 2029, These federal and state NOL carry forwards disclosed do not contain NOLs
that may be hmited due to §382 which the Company 15 still in the process of evaluating the potential limitation.

The Company files income tax returns with federal and state jurisdictions. The Company is no longer subject to
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) or state examinations for periods prior to March 31, 2016, although certain carry
forward attributes that were generated prior to 2016 may still be adjusted by the IRS,

The Company includes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions within the provision for income taxes,
As of March 31, 2022, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits that would significantly change in the next 12
months.

Note 10 - Stockholders® Equity/(Deficit)

Preferred Stock

Our authorized capital stock includes 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, with a par value of $0.001 per share.

As of March 31, 2021, there were 666,66 shares of Preferred Stock 1ssued and outstanding.  During the year ended
March 31, 2022, the holder converted their shares of Preferred Stock into 666,660 shares of Common Stock.

Commaon Stock

As of March 31, 2021, the Company had 24,536,963 shares of common stock 1ssued and outstanding. During the vear
ended March 31, 2022, 666,66 shares of Series B Preferred Stock were converted into 666,660 shares of common
stock. As of March 31, 2022, the Company had 25,203,623 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

Warranis
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In March 2021, the Company entered into an appearance agreement with Crush Capital, Inc. (“Crush Agreement™) for
Crush Capital to pertorm certam marketing, branding and production services related to the Company’s anticipated
Regulation A offering (see Note 13). In connection with the agreement, the Company granted 2,222,222 warrants to
purchase common stock at an exercise price of 30,10 per share. The warrants have a term of 5 vears and vested
immediately. The Company calculated a fair value of the warrants of 860,710 using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The services and related Regulation A offering occurred in April 2022, and therefore the value of the warrant
was included in prepaid expenses and other current assets as of March 31, 2022, The weighted-average remaining
contractual life of the warrants is 2.5 years as of March 31, 2022,

The following 15 a summary of warrant activity:

Weighted
Average Instrinsic
Warrants Exercise Price Value

Outstanding - March 31, 2020 1,666,663 5 062 b -
Ciranted - -
Exercised - -
Forferted - -
Outstanding - March 31, 2021 1,666,663 5 062 & -
Grantad 2,222,222 010
Excrcised - -
Forfeited i 1.666,663) 0.62
Outstanding - March 31, 2022 2,222,222 % 0, 10 £ Hdd 444
Exercisahle at March 31, 2021 1, 66, GG 3 = (G2 4 -
Exercisable at March 31, 2022 2323323 b3 (.10 % Rd4.444

The warrants were valued under the Black-5Scholes option pricing model using the following assumptions:

Year Ended
March 31,
2022 2021
Risk-free interest rate 0.80% na
Expected dividend yield 0.00% n'a
Expected volatility 63.00%, n'a
Expected life (years) 2.5 n'a
Fair value of underlving comimon stock S .48 wa

Note 11 - Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2021 Plan™),
which is administered by the Board of Directors, or a committee thereof (the “Administrator™) as set forth in the 2021
Plan. The 2021 Plan provides for the grant of the incentive stock options, non statutory stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, performance stock awards, performance cash
awards and other stock awards to the Company’s employees, directors (including non-employee directors), advisors
and consultants, Subject to certam adjustments, as of March 31, 2022, the Company are authonzed to 1ssue up to
4,500,000 shares of its common stock pursuant to awards granted under the 2021 Plan. During fiscal years 2022 and
2021, there was no stock option activity and the Company mcurred no stock-based compensation expense.

Grants under the 2013 Plan vest and expire based on periods determined by the Administrator, but in no event can the
expiration date be later than 10 years from the date of grant. As of March 31, 2021, there were outstanding stock
options to purchase an aggregate of 2,602 shares of common stock with a weighted-average exercise price of $104,
weighted-average remaining contractual life of 3.5 vears, and insignificant average intrinsic value. During the vear
ended March 31, 2022, the options were forfeited and no options remained outstanding. Durning fiscal yvears 2022 and
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2021, there was no stock option activity, and during fiscal years 2022 and 2021, the Company incurred no stock-based
compensation expenses, As of March 31, 2022, the Company had no unearned stock-based compensation, However,
the Company expects to grant and recognize stock-based compensation in the future.

Note 12 — Related Party Transactions
Steve Saleen

During fiscal year 2020, we settled total outstanding balance due to Steve Saleen, our founder and chief executive
officer, for $0.5 million. Amounts due to Mr. Saleen included advances made to us and accrued compensation. The
advances were non-interest bearing, with no formal terms of repayment. As of March 31, 2021, we owed Mr. Saleen
$0.3 mullion for accrued compensation.

Steve Saleen 15 a party 1o an Assignment and License Agreement with our Predecessor, dated May 23, 2013, and
which was assumed by the Company. Under the Assignment and License Agreement, the Company has a perpetual,
irrevocable, royalty-free, worldwide license to use Mr. Saleen’s likeness in the creation, engineering, development,
production, manufacturing, packaging, promotion, distribution, marketing, sale and racing of electric and other high
performance vehicles, vehicle parts and accessories, and apparel. Excluded from this license are the use of Mr.
Saleen’s likeness in relation to movies, television programs, plays, scripts, books, articles, video games, computer
games, action figures, toys, miniatures, speeches, public appearances, and incidental activities. Under the terms of the
Assignment and License Agreement, Mr. Saleen was to receive consideration of 341,943 shares of Super Voting
Pretferred Stock, issued by the Predecessor, and the right to terminate all licenses for the use of his likeness in the event
the Company files a petition for relief under Chapter 7 of the Bankruptey Code or in the event a petition for relieve is
converted to a Chapter 7 proceeding. The Predecessor’s Super Voting Preferred Stock was not issued to Mr. Saleen.
The Predecessor's board of directors adopted a resolution on July 15, 2021, granting Mr. Saleen a right to additional
equity in the Company for the purpose of maintaining his ownership at 22.5% after completion of this Offering if Mr.
Saleen would agree to amend the Assignment and License Agreement to remove the right to terminate the license for
use of his likeness. To date, this resolution has not been adopted by the Company.

As of March 31, 2022, the Company owed Mr. Saleen $190,698 in loans and $634,993 in accrued payroll.
§7 Agreement

On May 31, 2019, we entered into an asset purchase agreement with 57 Supercars, LLC (87 Supercars™) (87
Purchase Agreement™), a related party controlled by affiliates of two of our principal stockholders., pursuant to which
57 Supercars sold all of 1ts assets, chassis and other automotive parts relating to the manufacture of the Saleen 57
supercar (57", and related intellectual property, to us for an aggregate purchase price of $1.5 million comprised of
a cash consideration of $0.8 million and the elimination of an $0.7 million accounts receivable from 57 Supercars,
We accounted for this purchase as an asset acquisition, and accordingly, the consideration given for the assets was
allocated to a trade name in intangible assets. Prior to the execution of the 57 Purchase Agreement, we manufactured
the 57 under the agreement with 87 Supercars. 57 Purchase Agreement contains a provision that we pay 87 Supercars
up to four payments of $0.1 million each for a sale of 87 through May 31, 2021, subject to the certain conditions
included in the 87 Purchase Agreement. During this two-year period, we did not sell any 87, and therefore, did not
make any payments to the sellers of 87 Supercars. During two months ended May 31, 2019, we recognized revenue
from 87 Supercars of $0.5 million.

The Company did not sell any 875 in the fiscal year 2022,
Dbty

Refer to Note 6 for related party debis.

Note 13 — Subse